DIABLO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES DIABLO COUNTRY CLUB CURTOLA ROOM OCTOBER 14, 2024 6:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER: President Kathy Urbelis called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

President Urbelis welcomed Directors and the public and explained the rules for public comment.

<u>ROLL CALL:</u> Director Chartier called the roll as follows:

Directors present: Urbelis, Cox, Slavonia, Chartier Directors absent: Lorenz

WELCOME OFFICIALS:

Zach Scalzo (of Best, Best, & Krieger LLP, General Counsel) Kathy Torru (General Manager) Hank Salvo (Diablo Country Club)

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

Jeff Eorio congratulated President Kathy Urbelis for being recognized as the DPOA 2023 Diablo Citizen of The Year and thanked her for her years of service to the DCSD and the community. Jeff commended the Board for adopting a Records Retention Policy and encouraged the Board to reconsider adopting the County 3-foot setback requirement for fences and walls.

Maryann Cella requested clarification of the District's Records Retention Policy and requested the Board add additional steps on Kay's Trail to make it more accessible.

Alan Bonny congratulated President Kathy Urbelis for being recognized as the DPOA 2023 Diablo Citizen of The Year and thanked her for her years of service to the DCSD and the community.

BOARD/STAFF COMMUNICATION AND ACTIONS:

ADMINISTRATIVE:

President Urbelis announced that the DCSD and DPOA will host a Holiday Cocktail hour for Diablo residents on Tuesday December 10 from 5:30-7:30 pm at the Diablo Country Club Carriage Lounge. Invitations will be emailed to residents providing more details.

President Urbelis reported that General Manager Torru reviewed three vendor proposals to digitize, catalog, shred and provide cloud services for the District's records. UBEO Business Services was selected as the recommended vendor due to a lower cost and better fit for the District. On Motion by Director Slavonia and second by Director Cox, the Board authorized Director Urbelis and General Manager Torru to negotiate a contract with UBEO Business Services to digitize, catalog, shred and provide cloud services for the District's records at a cost not to exceed \$15,000. Motion passed 4-0.

General Manager Torru presented the 2024 audit report prepared by Richardson & Company. The District received a clean audit opinion, with no adjustments and no internal control weaknesses or concerns identified. A copy of the audit report is available on the District's website under the Documents Tab.

ROADS:

Director Cox updated the Board on the ENGEO creeks and open space assessment project; This past summer the District contracted with ENGEO to perform a visual assessment of the creeks and open space in Diablo to note observable geological conditions such as erosion, scour, landslides and slumps as well as loose soil, debris or impacted structures. ENGEO performed the visual assessment July 29th – 31st and communicated directly with individual property owners advising them of the geological concerns identified. Those letters were mailed to property owners at the end of August.

The creeks and open space in Diablo are outside the District's scope; however, the District engaged ENGEO as a service to the community and at the request of the State Water Resource Board.

Director Cox updated the Board on the Dan Cook Creek channel mitigation project. The District was granted a CDFW (California Department of Fish and Wildlife) permit this past month to restore the Dan Cook Creek Channel to its original condition where it crosses Kay's Trail. This project involved removing the 3 culvert pipes, broken concrete and other foreign debris from the creek bed, re-grading the creek bed and adding natural stone steps to allow Kay's Trial users to cross the creek. The work was completed in September.

Director Cox asked the Board for authorization to enter a contract with Marshall Brothers to perform storm patrol services of the two trash racks for the 2024-25 winter season. Marshall Brothers performed the service last year to the District's satisfaction. The proposal for this year includes a cost increase of approx. \$700. On motion by President Urbelis and second by Director Chartier, the Board authorized Director Cox and General Manager Torru to negotiate a contract with Marshall Brothers to perform storm patrol services this winter at a cost not to exceed \$14,000.

SECURTY:

Director Slavonia reported that there were no incidents/crimes reported since the last report.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

On motion by Director Cox and second by Director Chartier, the August 12, 2024 Regular Minutes were approved. Motion passed 4-0.

On motion by Director Cox and second by President Urbelis, the September 21, 2024 Special Minutes were approved. Motion passed 3-0-1. Director Chartier abstained on the September minutes as she was not in attendance.

REPORTS:

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY: No report.

DIABLO COUNTRY CLUB: Hank Salvo, Diablo Country Club liaison, reported that the Club has been addressing operational issues that necessitated membership approval of an additional assessment, which was overwhelmingly approved. The Club made management changes and has hired Troon as interim General Manager to assist with the operational challenges.

DIRECTOR COMMENTS: None

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: President Urbelis stated that the General Manager will provide a detailed update of the Records Retention project at the November meeting.

CALL OF NEXT MEETING/ADJOURNMENT:

President Urbelis called the next meeting for November 11, 2024 at 6:00 pm at Diablo Country Club. There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:22 p.m.

Diablo Community Services District by

Kathy Torru, General Manager